EAST CONTRA COSTA
REGIONAL FEE AND FINANCING AUTHORITY
Antioch — Brentwood — Contra Costa County — Oakley — Pittsburg

A JOINT EXERCISE OF POWERS AGENCY
255 Glacier Drive, Martinez, CA 94553

AGENDA
Board of Directors
Meeting
(No In-person Meeting)

Thursday, September 8, 2022
6:30 p.m.

Tri-Delta Transit Meeting Room
801 Wilbur Avenue
Antioch, California

To slow the spread of COVID-19, in lieu of a public gathering, the East Contra Costa
Regional Fee and Financing Authority Board of Directors meeting will be accessible via
Zoom to all members of the public as permitted by Government Code Section
54953(e). Members of the public may participate in the meeting online, or by
telephone. To participate in the meeting please use the information.

To participate by phone, dial +17207072699 US.
The meeting ID is 842 1510 9864 Passcode: 540952
To participate online using Zoom, hold down CTRL + click the following:
Join Zoom Meeting Here Meeting ID: 842 1510 9864 (Passcode: 54092).

In lieu of making public comments at the meeting, members of the public also may submit public
comments before or during the meeting by emailing comments to Program Manager Dale Dennis
at dodennis@thecyberjungle.com. If you have difficulty emailing a public comment, please
contact Nancy Wein, Contra Costa County Public Works Department, at (925) 313-2275.

All comments submitted by email to the above email address before the conclusion of the meeting
will be included in the record of the meeting. When feasible, the Board Chair, or designated staff,
also will read the comments into the record at the meeting, subject to a two-minute time limit per
comment.

The Board Chair may reduce the amount of time allotted to read comments at the beginning of
each item or public comment period depending on the number of comments and the business of
the day. Your patience is appreciated. A break may be called at the discretion of the Board Chair.

Board of Directors: Authority Staff Office:
Holland White, City of Pittsburg — Chair Contra Costa County
Diane Burgis, Contra Costa County — Vice Chair 255 Glacier Drive
Lamar Thorpe, City of Antioch Martinez, CA 94553

Joel Bryant, City of Brentwood (925) 313-2000

Aaron Meadows, City of Oakley


https://us06web.zoom.us/j/84215109864?pwd=cjhid25XanRablhic01TZm9kL05aUT09
mailto:dodennis@thecyberjungle.com

EAST CONTRA COSTA
REGIONAL FEE AND FINANCING AUTHORITY

Antioch — Brentwood — Contra Costa County — Oakley — Pittsburg

A JOINT EXERCISE OF POWERS AGENCY
255 Glacier Drive, Martinez, CA 94553

To obtain a copy of a staff report or other written materials related to an open session item on the
agenda, please contact Nancy Wein, at the Contra Costa County Public Works Department, by
phone at (925) 313-2275, or by email to Nancy.Wein@pw.cccounty.us.

Agenda
September 8, 2022

1. Call to Order
2. Determination

A.

Teleconference Meetings: CONSIDER and ADOPT Resolution No. 2022/03
to authorize the Board of Directors to conduct teleconference meetings under
Government Code section 54953(e), and make related findings set forth in the
resolution; DETERMINE that the Authority will hold virtual meetings for the next
30 days; and DIRECT the Program Manager or Secretary of the Board to return
this matter to the Board within 30 days for reconsideration.

. ECCRFFA Comprehensive Nexus Study Project List: Staff recommends the

Board CONSIDER and APPROVE the List of Proposed Projects to be included
in the new comprehensive nexus study for the ECCRFFA Fee Program.

3. Public Comment

4. Consent Items

A. APPROVE minutes of the July 14, 2022 Board of Directors meeting. (August11,
2022 meeting cancelled).

B. Sand Creek Extension Project: APPROVE the Reimbursement, Waiver and
Release Agreement between ECCRFFA and DeNova Homes, Inc., for reimbursement
of $2,499,912 for constructing a portion of the Sand Creek Road Extension Project, and
AUTHORIZE the Secretary or designee to execute the Agreement on behalf of the
ECCRFFA.

C. APPROVE an amendment to the Consulting Services Agreement with L. Lucy
Owens to increase the payment limit by $75,000 to a revised payment limit of
$174,900 for staff support services for ECCRFFA and extend the term to
December 31, 2023; and AUTHORIZE the Secretary or designee to sign the
amendment on behalf of the Authority.

Board of Directors: Authority Staff Office:
Holland White, City of Pittsburg — Chair Contra Costa County
Diane Burgis, Contra Costa County — Vice Chair 255 Glacier Drive
Lamar Thorpe, City of Antioch Martinez, CA 94553

Joel Bryant, City of Brentwood (925) 313-2000

Aaron Meadows, City of Oakley


mailto:Nancy.Wein@pw.cccounty.us

EAST CONTRA COSTA
REGIONAL FEE AND FINANCING AUTHORITY
Antioch — Brentwood — Contra Costa County — Oakley — Pittsburg

A JOINT EXERCISE OF POWERS AGENCY
255 Glacier Drive, Martinez, CA 94553

5. Boardmember Comments

6. Adjournment

The Authority will provide reasonable accommodations for persons with disabilities planning to attend Board
meetings who contact the Staff at least 24 hours before the meeting, at (925) 595-4587. Any disclosable public
records related to an open session item on a regular meeting agenda and distributed by the East Contra Costa
Regional Fee and Finance Authority to a majority of members of the Board of Directors less than 72 hours prior to
that meeting are available for public inspection at 255 Glacier Drive, Martinez, CA during normal business hours.

Board of Directors: Authority Staff Office:

Holland White, City of Pittsburg — Chair Contra Costa County

Diane Burgis, Contra Costa County — Vice Chair 255 Glacier Drive
Lamar Thorpe, City of Antioch Martinez, CA 94553
Joel Bryant, City of Brentwood (925) 313-2000

Aaron Meadows, City of Oakley



EAST CONTRA COSTA REGIONAL FEE AND FINANCING AUTHORITY

DATE: September 8, 2022
TO: Board of Directors

FROM: Dale Dennis, Program Manager L@

SUBJECT:  Authorizing Teleconference Meetings (AB 361, Government Code §
54953(e))

Recommendation: Staff recommends the Board take the following actions:
1. Consider and Adopt Resolution No. 2022/03 to authorize the Board of
Directors to conduct teleconference meetings under Government Code section
54953(e), and make related findings set forth in the resolution;

2. Determine that the Authority will hold virtual meetings for the next 30 days; and

Direct the Program Manager and/or Secretary of the Board to return this matter
to the Board within 30 days for reconsideration.

(%)

Discussion:

When the COVID-19 pandemic began, Governor Newsom issued an executive order that
allowed local agencies to meet remotely without complying with all teleconferencing
requirements of the Brown Act. Executive Order N-29-20 suspended certain non-
emergency teleconferencing rules, including the requirements that each teleconference
location be listed on the agenda and be physically accessible to the public during the
meeting and that the public must be given an opportunity to comment at each
teleconference location. Since March 2020, the Board of Directors has met virtually, as
authorized by Executive Orders N-29-20, N-35-20, N-08-21 and N-15-21. This authority
expired September 30, 2021.

New legislation known as Assembly Bill 361, amended the teleconferencing provision of
the Brown Act, Government Code section 54953. Effective October 1, 2021, section
54953, subsection (e), authorizes a local agency to use special teleconferencing rules
when a legislative body of a local agency holds a meeting during a state of emergency
declared by the state and either A) state or local health officials have imposed or
recommended measures to promote social distancing, or B) the legislative body is
meeting to determine whether, or has determined, by majority vote, that meeting in person
would present imminent risks to the health or safety of meeting attendees.



East Contra Costa Regional Fee and Financing Authority Board of Directors
Agenda — September 8, 2022
Page 2

When a legislative body uses the emergency teleconferencing provisions under section
54953(e), the following rules apply:

e The agency must provide notice of the meeting and post an agenda as
required by the Brown Act, but the agenda does not need to list each
teleconference location or be physically posted at each teleconference
location.

e The agenda must state how members of the public can access the meeting
and provide public comment.

e The agenda must include an option for all persons to attend via a call-in or
internet-based service option.

e The body must conduct the meeting in a manner that protects the
constitutional and statutory rights of the public.

o If there is a disruption in the public broadcast of the meeting or of the call-
in or internet-based meeting service, the legislative body must stop the
meeting and take no further action on agenda items until public access and
ability to comment is restored.

e Local agencies may not require public comments to be submitted in
advance of the meeting and must allow virtual comments to be submitted in
real time.

e The body must allow a reasonable amount of time per agenda item to permit
members of the public to comment, including time to register or otherwise
be recognized for the purposes of comment.

 [fthe body provides a timed period for all public comment on an item, it may
not close that period before the time has elapsed.

e The body must reconsider the circumstances of the state of emergency and
the findings in support of emergency teleconference meetings every 30
days.

e AB 361 sunsets on January 1, 2024.

A Board resolution authorizing teleconferencing under section 54953(e) is attached. It
would determine that the State has declared a state of emergency related to COVID-19
and find that social distancing recommendations are in place and that there is an imminent
risk of harm to the public, staff, and officials if live meetings are conducted. If adopted, for
the next 30 days the resolution would require the Board of Directors to hold
teleconference meetings consistent with the above-described rules.

If the Board wishes to continue teleconferencing under section 54953(e), every 30 days
after adopting the attached resolution the Board must reconsider the circumstances of
the state of emergency and find that one or both of the following circumstances exists:
the state declared emergency continues to directly impact the ability of members to safely
meet in person, or state or local officials continue to impose or recommend measures to
promote social distancing. If the state-declared emergency no longer exists, or if the
Board does not make these findings by majority vote, then it will no longer be exempt



East Contra Costa Regional Fee and Financing Authority Board of Directors
Agenda — September 8, 2022
Page 3

from the Brown Act’s teleconferencing rules. The attached resolution directs the Program
Manager and/or Secretary to return no later than 30 days after the resolution is adopted
with an item for the Board to consider whether to continue meeting under the provisions
of Government Code section 54953 (e). If the resolution is not adopted, the Board, would
not be permitted to conduct teleconference meetings under the provisions of Government
Code section 54953(e), added by Assembly Bill 361, and this meeting would need to be
adjourned and rescheduled as an in-person meeting.



RESOLUTION NO. 2022/03

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE EAST CONTRA COSTA
REGIONAL FEE AND FINANCING AUTHORITY AUTHORIZING TELECONFERENCE
MEETINGS UNDER ASSEMBLY BILL 361

Recitals

A. On March 4, 2020, Governor Gavin Newsom proclaimed the existence of a state of
emergency in California under the California Emergency Services Act, Gov. Code § 8550
et seq.

B. On March 10, 2020, the Board of Supervisors found that due to the introduction of
COVID-19 in the County, conditions of disaster or extreme peril to the safety of persons
and property had arisen, commencing on March 3, 2020. Based on these conditions,
pursuant to Government Code section 8630, the Board adopted Resolution No. 2020/92,
proclaiming the existence of a local emergency throughout the County.

C. On March 17, 2020, Governor Newsom issued Executive Order N-29-20, which
suspended the teleconferencing rules set forth in the California Open Meeting law,
Government Code section 54950 et seq. (the Brown Act), provided certain requirements
were met and followed.

D. On June 11, 2021, Governor Newsom issued Executive Order N-08-21, which clarified
the suspension of the teleconferencing rules set forth in the Brown Act and further
provided that those provisions would remain suspended through September 30, 2021.

E. On September 16, 2021, Governor Newsom signed Assembly Bill 361, which provides
that under Government Code section 54953 (e), a legislative body subject to the Brown
Act may continue to meet using teleconferencing without complying with the non-
emergency teleconferencing rules in Government Code section 54953(b)(3) if a
proclaimed state of emergency exists and state or local officials have imposed or
recommended measures to promote social distancing.

F. On September 20, 2021, the Contra Costa County Health Officer issued
recommendations for safely holding public meetings that include recommended measures
to promote social distancing.

G. Among the Health Officer’s recommendations: (1) on-line meetings (teleconferencing
meetings) are strongly recommended as those meetings present the lowest risk of
transmission of SARS-CoV-2, the virus that causes COVID-19; (2) if a local agency
determines to hold in-person meetings, offering the public the opportunity to attend via a
call-in option or an internet-based service option is recommended when possible to give
those at higher risk of an/or higher concern about COVID-19 an alternative to
participating in person; (3) a written safety protocol should be developed and followed,

Page 1 of 3



and it is recommended that the protocol require social distancing — i.e., six feet of
separation between attendees — and face masking of all attendees; (4) seating
arrangements should allow for staff and members of the public to easily maintain at least
six-foot distance from one another at all practicable times.

H. The California Department of Public Health (CDPH) and the federal Centers for Disease
Control and Prevention (CDC) caution that the Omicron variant of COVID-19, currently
the dominant strain of COVID-19 in the country, is more transmissible than prior variants
of the virus, may cause more severe illness, and even fully vaccinated individuals can
spread the virus to others resulting in rapid and alarming rates of COVID-19 cases and
hospitalizations.

L. As of August30, 2022, the CDC-reported seven-day rolling average of new cases in the
County was 185.08 cases per day, per 100,000 of population, a case rate that remains in
the “high” community transmission tier, the most serious of the CDC’s community
transmission tiers. According to the Contra Costa County Health Officer, the
predominant variant of COVID-19 being identified continues to be the Omicron variant,
which has been shown to dramatically increase COVID-19 transmission.

J. In the interest of public health and safety, as affected by the emergency caused by the
spread of COVID-19, the East Contra Costa Regional Fee and Financing Authority Board
of Directors intends to invoke the provisions of Assembly Bill 361 related to
teleconferencing.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Directors of the East Contra Costa Regional Fee and
Financing Authority resolves as follows:

l. The Board of Directors finds that the Contra Costa County Health Officer continues to
recommend that public meetings be held by teleconferencing as those meetings present
the lowest risk of transmission of SARS-CoV-2, the virus that causes COVID-19.

[\

The Board of Directors finds that meeting in person for meetings of the East Contra
Costa Regional Fee and Financing Authority Board of Directors would present imminent
risks to the health or safety of attendees because (a) as of August 30, 2022, the County
remains in the “high” community transmission tier, with a case rate of 185.08 cases per
day, per 100,000 of population, and (b) the Omicron variant has been shown to
dramatically increase COVID-19 transmission.

(WS

As authorized by Assembly Bill 361, the East Contra Costa Regional Fee and Financing
Authority Board of Directors will use teleconferencing for its meetings in accordance
with the provisions of Government Code section 54953(e).

4. The Program Manager and/or Secretary is authorized and directed to take all actions

necessary to implement the intent and purpose of this resolution, including conducting
open and public meetings in accordance with Government Code section 54953(e) and all

Page 2 of 3



other applicable provisions of the Brown Act.

5. The Program Manager and/or Secretary is directed to return no later than 30 days after
this resolution is adopted with an item for the Board of Directors to consider whether to
continue meeting under the provisions of Assembly Bill 361.

PASSED AND ADOPTED on September 8, 2022, by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing resolution was duly and regularly introduced, passed
and adopted by the above vote of the East Contra Costa Regional Fee and Financing Authority
Board of Directors, at a meeting of said Board of Directors on the date indicated above.

Date: Brian Balbas, Secretary
East Contra Costa Regional Fee and
Financing Authority

By:

Page 3 of 3



ANNA M. ROTH, RN, MS, MPH OFFICE OF THE DIRECTOR.

HEAUTH SERVICES DIRECTOR 1220 Morello, Suite 200
- S orello, Suite
HORI Tcz)vuzu. MD e, Martinez, CA 94553
CONTRA COSTA Ao
Fax (925) 957-2651
HEALTH SERVICES

Recommendations for safely holding public meetings

Each local government agency is authorized to determine whether to hold public meetings in person,
on-line (teleconferencing only), or via a combination of methods. The following are recommendations
from the Contra Costa County Health Officer to minimize the risk of COVID 19 transmission during a
public meeting.

1. Online meetings (i.e. teleconferencing meetings) are encouraged, where practical, as these
meetings present the lowest risk of transmission of SARS CoV-2, the virus that causes COVID 19. This is
particularly important when community prevalence rates are high. Our current trends as of August 9,
2022 in Covid-19 case rate, test positivity, Covid-19 hospitalizations, and Covid-19 wastewater
surveillance are stable, but still remain high at this time. In addition to this, the predominant variant of
Covid-19 being identified continues to be the Omicron variant and it’s subvariants the impact of which
on the spread of Covid-19 has shown to dramatically increase COVID-19 transmission.

2. If a local agency determines to hold in-person meetings, offering the public the opportunity to
attend via a call-in option or an internet-based service option is recommended, when possible, to give
those at higher risk of and/or higher concern about COVID-19 an alternative to participating in person.

3. A written safety protocol should be developed and followed. It is recommended that the
protocol require social distancing, where feasible —i.e. six feet of separation between attendees; and
consider requiring or strongly encouraging face masking of all attendees and encouraging attendees to
be up-to-date on their COVID-19 vaccine.

4. Seating arrangements should allow for staff and members of the public to easily maintain at
least six-foot distance from one another at all practicable times.

5. Consider holding public meetings outdoors. Increasing scientific consensus is that outdoor
airflow reduces the risk of COVID-19 transmission compared to indoor spaces. Hosting events outdoors
also may make it easier to space staff and members of the public at least 6 feet apart. If unable to host
outdoors, consider ways to increase ventilation and flow of the indoor space to reduce the risk of
COVID-19 while indoors.

6. Current evidence is unclear as to the added benefit of temperature checks in addition to
symptom checks. We encourage focus on symptom checks as they may screen out individuals with other
Covid-19 symptoms besides fever and help reinforce the message to not go out in public if you are not
feeling well.

7. Consider a voluntary attendance sheet with names and contact information to assist in contact
tracing of any cases linked to a public meeting.

Revised 8-9-2022
SWMM

Sefanit Mekuria, MD, MPH
Deputy Health Officer, Contra Costa County

2|  Contra Costa Behavioral Health Services « Contra Costa Emergency Medical Services  Contra Costa Environmental Health & Hazardous Materials Programs

" Contra Costa Health, Housing & Homeless Services » Contra Costa Health Plan e Contra Costa Public Health « Contra Costa Regional Medical Center & Health Centers




EAST CONTRA COSTA
REGIONAL FEE AND FINANCING AUTHORITY
DATE: September 8, 2022
TO: Board of Directors

FROM: Dale Dennis, Program Manager &f

SUBJECT: Comprehensive Nexus Study Update for the East Contra Costa Regional Fee and
Financing Authority Fee Program

Recommendation: Staff recommends the Board CONSIDER and APPROVE the List of Proposed
Projects to be included in the comprehensive nexus study update for the ECCRFFA Fee Program.

Discussion:

In March 2021, the Board directed the Program Manager to proceed with conducting a
comprehensive nexus study, to support updating of the ECCRFFA fee program to reflect the
region’s current transportation infrastructure priorities.

Over the past year, staff has been working with our consultant, Fehr and Peers and member agency
staff to develop the comprehensive nexus study update for the ECCRFFA fee program. The focus
of the work to date has been developing a list of capital projects that might be considered for
inclusion in the ECCRFFA fee program (see Attachment 1). This work has been undertaken in
close coordination with the staff from each member agency, involving several meetings of the entire
group as well as individual meetings with individual member agencies. Also, for reference, see
Attachment 2 that shows the current list of capital projects that are in the ECCRFFA fee program.

The work started with the current list of projects in the ECCRFFA fee program and researched
updated the information about each project’s current status, current estimated cost, and any
changes in project definition that may have occurred as the project sponsor has moved ahead with
more detailed planning and design.

Then, input was solicited from the member agencies about projects they propose to add to the
program. The focus is on projects that are aligned with the purpose of the ECCRFFA fee program,
which is to support the construction of transportation infrastructure needed to serve regional travel
demand within and through the East County area. ECCRFFA staff and consultants, with support

ACTION OF BOARD ON APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER

VOTE OF DIRECTORS

UNANIMOUS (ABSENT )
AYES: NOES:

ABSENT: ABSTAIN: I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an
action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Directors on the date shown.

ATTESTED
Secretary to the Authority




East Contra County Fee and Financing Authority Board of Directors
Agenda — September 8, 2022
Page 2

from the County Counsel’s office, reviewed and evaluated the proposed projects to assess each
project’s alignment with the program purpose; some of the proposed projects were screened out at
this stage.

ECCRFFA staff and consultants supported the member agencies by preparing cost estimates for
some projects that did not otherwise have that level of information, and worked closely with member
agency staff to ensure that the project descriptions are accurate.

Once the Board approves a project list, the next steps will be to evaluate each project and
determine the proportion of project cost, if any, that would meet the nexus requirements and if met,
allow the project to be included in the ECCRFFA fee program. This will first involve determining
whether the project addresses any existing deficiencies, in which case the ECCRFFA fee program
could be used to cover only the portion of the project costs not associated with addressing that
deficiency. Then modeling will be conducted to determine the extent to which each project
contributes to serving future travel demand related to the anticipated growth in population and
employment in the East County area.

The draft nexus study will be reviewed by ECCRFFA staff and the County Counsel’s office, and will
be brought to the Board for review and eventual approval.

ATTACHMENTS:
Attachment 1 — Proposed Projects for Updated ECCRFFA Fee Program
Attachment 2 — Current Projects in the ECCRFFA Fee Program




Attachment 1

PROPOSED PROJECTS
FOR
UPDATED
ECCRFFA FEE PROGRAM



'(089 @1eA0UU| O} Jejiwis) Juawdo|aaap INDI

) uswabeue JopLIOD) paresbaiu| -
000L$ V1o -4S 9pPIMAIUNOD) JO (3SOD |B101 AU} J|ey-duo “a'1) ateys AJuno) ise3 } W 10PIIOD PAEIDAI 7-45 or
'Saue| |aAel] ppe 01 JBp|NoYs
ay3 BuIlISAUOD 1O ‘SBUB| MOJ} PaXIW pue saue| Aleljixne mau
31epOWWOIdE 0} BuluapIM ‘DpN|PUl SBAIIRUISY e JUBWaAcIdW|
00°LLL$ V12D 13(o.d awanoidw [euonessdo -ys 6¢

‘abueydiaiul peoy Asjieg ay3 0} abueydiajul gyg ¥S/v
WS 93 JO 159M S3|IW £°0 Usamiaq 7 YS Buoje suonesado snoidw
((punogisapn) 4-3 sebedped pue (punogisel) -y sebedped

199435 uueon

00'0£$ poomjualg Buissol) |1ey Aepn 994 duoT 8¢
0} 9NUBAY MBIAJIIES WOJ4 PauUdpIM BuISSOIdIapUN dijIded UOIUN
'sapelbdn uol}dasIBIUI PUB ‘SH|EMBpIS ‘saue
¥895% 6ingsiid P W wip A P ! sjuswanoidw| peoy Aa|leg /€
uin} ppe ‘peoy pued] M pue sHwi A1D Ulayinos usamiag
AemybiH yoonuy-6ingsuid pue
0.2% 6ingsiid 4BIH WOohUY 4SHid P sjuawanoldw| peoy abplaAoT 9¢
¥ YS usamiaq say|idey 32Ad1q panosdwil pue sy|emapis pauspIp
pJeas|nog
TsLs Bungsnid SNUBAY |10 piepuels 13
uojuo( sawer 0} pJeAS|NOg Jle4 B}9J WO} PO due|-Z MAN
000L$ yoonuy  peoy youey usne|s 03 peoy AspieQ wody Aempeod auel-g MaN UOISU3IXJ SNUBAY BIIIA es
uoiels 1yyg Yyoonuy ayj e Juswbas
08'SL$ yoonuy . ce
snuiwJa} Busixa 0} peoy asI0H P|IM WOy AeeMpeOs duel- MON  UYMON ‘UOISUSIX] PeOY yduey Usne|s
juswbas
09'62$ UooUY  peoy SSIOH PIIM 03 19311 MOPIA wouy Aempeod sue|- MaN [43

YINOS ‘UOISUSIXT pPeOY Ydouey usne(s
'sdiys ajquuni pue Buiybi| 19a13s |[eIsul ‘SI9PINOYS JapIM/sauoz
08'9% AQunod Aisnodal ppe ‘aue| uinl-1a| Aem-om} ppe 1994 Gz 01 peos uspim  suswaroidw| A1ajes ojgelq ourwed L€
:KemybiH uoiAg pue peoy odsep usamiaq suswanosdwi A1ajes
‘peOY SSOH YINOS e 19y20d uin} J3| paljipow e pue peoy

aueT BuiquiiD 3dni ) peoy ssed JaxIIY o€
ssed Jad1y Buoje aue| Buiquid 3PNJ3 PUNOGUINOS € 3oNIISU0D)

0€°9¢€$ Auno>

"BuISSOJD pROJ|IES B SOPN|DUL DNUBAY SJ9||9S

. VEN uoISUaIX3 peOY [2INe
Ov'8es Peo 0} PeOY U0}9| WOI) [BLISME SUB[-INO) B SB PROY [INET PUSIXJ SUOPG PEOY [9INET 6¢

peoy AjoiaN pue Aepn MOPPIA Buissold

65L7$ Aopeo , 82
U2aM3aq ‘BuISSOIDISN0 peOd|lel pue [BlId}Ie SUB|-INO) 1DNJIISUOD) |ley pue Buluapipy SnuaAy aJidw]

veves Auno) abpuig ybno|s o0y pue peoy e}aQ UdaMlaq peol puaixl uolsuaixg AemybiH uoiAg are

wiboid v4441D3 paivpdn 40j pasodo.d s3iafo.id

suoljjiw $ ‘30D pajewlsy suwi afold /uondusaqg

(Ajup sasodind uoissnasiq 404 - 3eaq Buppopn) st 1afoud V444dD3



8G9°€LSS syoafoud pasodoud 1oy jero)
‘Peoy INojjeg pue ‘peoy INUISaYD

‘peoy 195UNS ‘peoy 39a1) YsIe 3 saue| uiny pue sjeubis
dlel} YIM suofdasiaiul buipesbdn pue ‘saue| [aaely buiuspim
‘siap|noys Buippe apnpoul suswanoldw| "peoy 3aa1) ysle
pue [eue) Ule|\ U9amiaq pue ‘peoy Inuisayd pue peoy eyad
usaM1aq spJepuels ubisap JuaLINd 0} BNUBAY SJ9||9S apebdn
"UoNe)S 1 Yyg 24Ny e

09°0L$ poomualg 0} Juddefpe aq pjnom ais ay3 ‘wis} buo sbueydisiul -ys/Aep |[ePOWISIU| POOMIUBIG %

L8vC$ Auno) syuawanoldw| A1ojes anusAy sIa||as mv

921] 9UOT 3y} JO YOS 10| dpu pue yied adeds-QQg Ue 1oNJ3sUo)

poomuaig 01 [ 4vd

: 00MIUBIG PUB YDO[UY USIMID Buoje snq ssaidx
1872L$ V12D poomiusig pue yoonuy 199 ¥ ¥S |esnq 3 YpoRuY Wouy psuer Apedes yBiH

A4



Attachment 2

CURRENT PROJECTS
IN
ECCRFFA FEE PROGRAM



919|dwod Ajjerned

aseyd [ejuswiuoiinug

aseyd [ejuswiuoiinug

pajajdwod

buidesspue|
Jo uondadxa yum
‘parejdwio) | aseyqd

buidedspue|
Jo uondadxs
yum ‘parajdwod

buidesspue|
Jo uondadxe
ynm ‘pasjdwod

paja|dwod
paajdwod
paja|dwod
paia|dwod

0006¢%
08'92$%

00°€L$

8v'ves

00°LOLS

00°L9L$

09°22$

90'6€$
L8'9V$

9¢'86%

LevLs
09CL$

08'LL$

08'€v$
75°9¢$
0091%
0€'ees
00'L$
0L'05%
0L°€LLS
000L$
0LvL€$
08'/5L%
00'LOLS

suojjiw § ‘350D pajewsy

Auno>
Auno)

Auno>

poomjuaig ‘AapeQ

V12D 'Aiunod

V12D 'Aiunod

KopieQ ‘yonuy

Auoyiny ssedAg
Aoyiny ssedAg

Auoyiny ssedAg

Auoyiny ssedAg
Aoyiny ssedAg

Auoyiny ssedAg

Auoyiny ssedAg
Ayoyiny ssedAg
Aoyiny ssedAg
Auoyiny ssedAg
Ayoyiny ssedAg
Ayoyiny ssedAg
Ayuoyiny ssedAg
V12D
V13D
V12D
V12D

Auno) 03 saue| { 03} USPIA

peoy a1) Ysie|\ 0} peoy Inojjeg Aajjep

199@ ‘sywi] AHD uolhe|) 03} pJead|nog INUjepA B340 YsIe
saue| {7 0} UaPIM syl A}> poomjuaig 03} A3jjeA 499
poomjuaig YInos Ui peoy Inojjeg pue 39211

INUISaYD usaMIaq pue ‘A3peQ Ul peoy eyaq pue 12a11S Y4
U2aM1aq |elid}Ee SUB|-INOJ JUS)SISUOD d3eald pue sdeb aso|d
‘94 129[01d Japun paIanod

SJUBW|D SAPN|IXT "SISOD UOIIINIISUOD ON ‘Uoida30Id Aem
-}0-3ybu pue ‘ubisap ‘MaIARI [EIUBWIUOIIAUD SBPN[dU| :(Juswbas
150D BIIUOD) JOPLIIOD 939|dWO0D 10} SAIHAIIOE UOIDNIISUOD-3id
syuawanoidwi [eD0| paleIdOSSe pue

KemybiH uoiAg pue peoy 0dsep Usamlaq Aempeol suej-z MaN

saue| 9 ‘alidw3 o3 ssedAg +ys

peoy odsep 1e abueydisiu] pAjg Inuepp
sbueypusiu| y9a1D ysien

abueydiaiul Inoyjeg

(peoy y991) Ysie\ O} Jnojjeq) saue| O} USPIM '€ Juswbas
SaUE| g ‘'03Se/\ 0} 934D Ysle

J0}23UU0d

1saM-1sed a1 ysle snid (saue| g) 39a1) Ysie\ 03 unojjeq
931D pues 0} [aineT ‘saue|  pue abueydiaiul 39a1) pues
peoy 931D pues o} peoy |2ineT ‘saue| 9 0} USPIA

peoy Inojjeg 0} peoy }aa1) pues ‘saue| ¢ ‘2 aseyd

saue| ¢ ‘| aseyd

2 9seyd ‘abueydiaiul [aine

abueydiaiul 091 YS ‘2 dseyd

ey
ALINT NHIP N\ 1IAINPT 1P ﬁum__u__J_u.:__ ‘Iainpa M <Ak 0 ‘1 Acpilg
uolsuedxa abueyd.aul 3sa.d|(IH

(ssedAg 03 saue| 9 ‘}saud||IH 0} saue| g) ssedAg 0} abplianoT
abueydiajul a6pLBAOT
saue| g 0} USPIM ‘peoy dBPLIBAOT O} dNUBAY peoljiey

peoy 0JseA/ig 91noy
sjuawadueyuy A1ajes

peoy As|[eA 199Q/peOY Y991 ysieN
Buiuspim peoy inojeg

Buiuspim
(PAIg poomiuaig 10 1S UIBIA) 7 US

6€C dS

10129UU0D
KemybiH uoiAg — peoy 0dsep :6E2YS

UOISUalXe peoy |a4neq

sjuawanosdwy praLY

€ Juawbag ssedAg ¢ YS

2 Juawbas ssedAg ¢ ys

| Juawbag ssedAg ¢ YS

Buiuspim Aemasiq ¢ Ys

[0

S

L

sy 323foud /uondudsaqg

spuawanosdury Aomaai4

wipiboid 334 V44413 ul s3rafoid Jo 1517 Juarind




paa|dwo)

paiajdwod

JuswiWwWIod V444203

919|dwod Ajjerueq

89°968'2$
00°€LS$
0£'8%
067€$

0€8L$

0L21%

00'22%

05'82%
0L'6$
90'6¢$
§8'6%
LSZLS
9L'8v$

SOvL$

08's0L$

8vELS

5594

28'8%

1975$

V12D

Vsuel| eyaQ-t1

yoonuy

Aunod

poomiuaig

fAuno>

yoonuy ‘Ayunod

Aopeo

yoonuy

Auno)

6ingsnid

yoonuy

6ingsnid

Bingsnid

Auno) ‘6ingsnid

6ingsnid

Yyoonuy

Bangsiid ‘Yyoonuy

Ud01juy O3 UOISuaIXs | ¥Vvde

weiboud snq pideds jeuoibal jo ubisap pue buiuueld

peoy
Aa|jep 199Q pue ¢ YS usamiaq Aempeol aue|-{ JO UOISUSIX]

peoy e}jaQ pue ¥ Y¥S usamiaq syuswanolidwi A1ajes

3NUSAY M3IAIIR4 PUB PeOY JNOojjeg Udamiaq Aempeoy map|

peoy 0dseA O} sywl| A}1> poomiuaig ‘saue| 4 0} USPIAA
Yaonuy uiyym

py Inojjeg o3 py sully aiidw3 woly pue ‘Aunod sy} uiyim
peoy aully asidw3 03 sHwi AHD yoonuy ‘saue| 0} UspIA

Py [24ne 0} py A9PpjeQ ‘saue| 1 01 USPIM

091 YS O3 9ALIQ JSXBUIA 'SSUE| { O} USPIA

saue| 7 0}

uapIm ‘(p10dU0D) Py Ssed MOJ|IM O} (ulod Aeg) py ssed MOJ|IM
"9ALI BS2IS] BlUES Je [eubis dlyjeu) 'syjemapls ‘ueipaw
padedspue| Ylim [elLId}e PapPIAIP SUE|-IN0) Se JONIISUOD peoy
B[IAY O} PJEMISOM SNUIWLIS} JUSLIND WO PUBIST IS\ PUSIXT
UBUBLDNG 0} 93J] SUOT 'Saue| { O} USPIM

'sjeubis anizdepe

pue 10auu0dIa3Ul [eubis |[elsul 'spiepuels ubisap Jualind aAaIyde
0} SY{[EMSPIS USPIM 'SSUE| 931 PPE ‘SSUE| UIN) [BUOI}IPPE YHM
eINJUSA pue ‘abplIaA0T I0gUeH Je SUOIIDSIaIUI droidwl (peoy
9||IASISWOS PUB SNUSAY PEOU|IEY USSMIST MOJ} dijjel} arodw)
peoy ssed JaxIy 0} J||IASIDWOS ‘[elIdME dUe|-{ 01 -2 MON
(Aunod uyum) spwiry Ao o3 Asjieg

pue (Bangsnid uiynm) spwir Aid oy sbuey ‘saue| i 0} UspIM
‘uoness | yyge

193ud) Bingsiid 10) Bupied Buippe ‘syjlemapis buluspim ‘saue|
%19 Buippe saajoaul aseyd juaind ‘buluspim swos paajdwod
sey aseyd Jold "abplian0T 0} peoujiey ‘saue| f 0} USPIA

1S 70} 1S V ‘sjuswanoidwi 39|dnod

‘sayoeoudde |je uo ssue| uiny pue

saue| ybnoiy) omy ajepowrliodde 03 3BPLIBAOT 1 UOI}I9SIdUI
anoidw| "9BpLBAOT 0} 8ALIQ 19IUSD) OINY ‘SSUE| { O} USPIA

syoafoud bunsixg 1oy jero|

Jiey Janwwo)

sng ssaidx3 Ayuno) ise3

spafo.id 3supiy jpuorbay

peoy 931D pues

KemybiH uoihg

Kemjied Jiny uyor

Buiuspipn pleasjnog inujepy

Buluspip peoy As|jen 4eeq

Buluapip peoy AjolaN

SNUBAY INC|IM

peoy ei0A] 1O

peoy puejsT 19M

uainzjl{/sejjebai] 1S9

syuawanoidw| peoy ueueydng o

UoISUd1X3 PA|g uojuoq sawef

peoy ssed MOJ|IM

SnusAy elulojijed

$192115 Ylua| pue YuiN

KemybiH yoonuy-61ngsiig

9¢
S¢

yx4

vie

€¢

[44

0¢
6l

8l

Ll

9l

Sl

4

€l

cl



EAST CONTRA COSTA

REGIONAL FEE AND FINANCING AUTHORITY
Antioch - Brentwood - Oakley - Pittsburg and Contra Costa County

JOINT EXERCISE OF POWERS AGENCY

July 14, 2022

To slow the spread of COVID-19, in lieu of a public gathering, the EAST CONTRA COSTA
REGIONAL FEE AND FINANCING AUTHORITY (ECCRFFA) Board of Directors meeting
was accessible via Zoom to all members of the public as permitted by Government Code
Section 54953(e). Members of the public were permitted to participate in the meeting
online, or by telephone, and in lieu of making public comments at the meeting, members
of the public could submit public comments before or during the meeting through
dodennis@thecyberjungle.com.

Vice Chair Burgis called the meeting to order at 7:04 P.M.

ROLL CALL

PRESENT: Joel Bryant (Brentwood), Aaron Meadows (Oakley), Lamar Thorpe
(Antioch), and Vice Chair Diane Burgis (Contra Costa County)

ABSENT:  Chair Holland White (Pittsburg)
STAFF: Dale Dennis, Program Manager

DETERMINATION

Teleconference Meetings: CONSIDER adopting ECCRFFA Resolution No. 2022/02 to
authorize the Board of Directors to conduct teleconference meetings under Government
Code Section 54953(e) and make related findings; DETERMINE that the Authority will hold
virtual meetings for the next 30 days; and DIRECT the Program Manager or Secretary of
the Board to return this matter to the Board within 30 days for reconsideration.

No written comments were submitted, or oral comments made, by any member of the public.

On motion by Director Meadows, seconded by Director Thorpe, the Authority APPROVED
Resolution No. 2022/02 authorizing the Board of Directors to conduct teleconference
meetings under Government Code Section 54953(e) and make related findings;
DETERMINED that the Authority will hold virtual meetings for the next 30 days; and
DIRECTED the Program Manager or Secretary of the Board to return this matter to the
Board within 30 days for reconsideration.

The motion carried by the following Roll Call vote:



ECCRFFA Minutes

July 14, 2022

Page 2

AYES: Bryant, Meadows, Thorpe, Burgis
NOES: None

ABSTAIN: None
ABSENT: White

Updated ECCRFFA Strategic Plan: Consider approving the Sand Creek Extension
Project as the next priority project for the ECCRFFA Program and approve the July 2022
ECCRFFA Strategic Plan and CCTA Measure J Funding Plan.

Dale Dennis, Program Manager, reported that staff had received a request from both the
City of Brentwood and the City of Antioch to prioritize the Sand Creek Extension Project as
the next priority project for the ECCRFFA Program. He noted that in September 2020, the
Authority added the Sand Creek Extension Project into the program. He also noted as part
of the Fourth Amendment to the ECCRFFA Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement (JEPA) in
2013, ECCRFFA had established project and funding priorities. The first priority was to
complete the SR4 East Widening, the eBART Extension to Hillcrest Avenue, the SR4
Bypass projects, and the outstanding ECCRFFA commitments at that point in time. The
second priority was the eBART Extension beyond Hillcrest Avenue for environmental review
up to $3 million, and the third priority was the James Donlon Extension Project.

Mr. Dennis advised that beyond that the Fourth Amendment indicated the priority and
funding for all ECCRFFA projects would be determined by the Authority Board. An
evaluation of the request by the cities of Brentwood and Antioch was conducted and it had
been determined that ECCRFFA could maintain the funding commitments for the first,
second and third priorities if funding was provided for the Sand Creek Extension Project.
Subsequently, a Draft Strategic Plan had been prepared and included in the Board packet
to show that the Sand Creek Extension Project could be funded in the 2022/2023 Fiscal
Year.

Mr. Dennis recommended that the Board approve the July 2022 ECCRFFA Strategic Plan
that maintained commitments to the first, second and third priorities, and where the Sand
Creek Extension Project was added as the next priority in FY 2022/23, with an estimated
cost of $12.5 million. He noted there was a provision in the Fourth Amendment to the JEPA
that changing the priority would require a unanimous vote of all members with all members
present but this would not constitute that type of requirement since all of the project and
funding priorities had either been completed or funds had been set aside to complete them.

Vice Chair Burgis commented that not all current members of ECCRFFA had been part of
the Authority in 2020 when the priorities had been re-established. She characterized the
proposed change as a win-win.

Director Bryant thanked staff for all the work and stated the project would bring significant
relief and traffic reduction at the borders of Brentwood and Antioch and create a life-saving
thoroughfare to Deer Valley Kaiser, as requested by Brentwood residents for years.



ECCRFFA Minutes
July 14, 2022
Page 3

Director Thorpe referred to “L” Street in Antioch and asked Mr. Dennis how to identify roads
of regional significance.

Mr. Dennis advised that routes of regional significance were generally established by the
Contra Costa Transportation Authority (CCTA) planning efforts and he would obtain that
information and provide it to Director Thorpe.

Vice Chair Burgis reported that she and Director Meadows had been discussing Sellers
Avenue and Byron Highway in East County in that same context.

Mr. Dennis advised that a Comprehensive Nexus Study Update for the ECCRFFA Program
was underway and he had been working with member agency staff to put together a list of
projects that could be added to the ECCRFFA Program. As such, this would be the time to
look at those types of projects and the roads mentioned and others could be considered.
Once the list of projects had been put together for the next Comprehensive Nexus Study
Update that list would be brought to the Board for approval prior to preparing the
Comprehensive Nexus Study Update.

No written comments were submitted, or oral comments made, by any member of the public.

On motion by Director Thorpe, seconded by Director Meadows, the Authority APPROVED
the updated July 2022 ECCRFFA Strategic Plan and CCTA Measure J Funding Plan, which
provided for the following:

1. Maintains funding commitments for projects with funding agreements
between East Contra Costa Regional Fee and Financing Authority
(ECCRFFA) and Project Sponsors: Bay Area Rapid Transit (BART), the
Contra Costa Transportation Authority (CCTA) for the eBART — Extension to
Hillcrest Avenue and the Balfour Road Interchange projects.

2. Maintains funding commitment for ECCRFFA to provide 68 percent of the
James Donlon Extension project costs up to $70.8 million as shown in the
November 2020 Plan.

3. Programs the Sand Creek Extension Project as the next priority project in FY
2022/23 with an estimated cost of $12.5 million.

The motion carried by the following Roll Call vote:

AYES: Bryant, Meadows, Thorpe, Burgis
NOES: None
ABSTAIN:  None
ABSENT: White



ECCRFFA Minutes
July 14, 2022
Page 4

PUBLIC COMMENT

No written comments were submitted, or oral comments made, by any member of the public.

CONSENT ITEMS

On motion by Director Meadows, seconded by Director Bryant, the Authority APPROVED
the Consent Items, as submitted, which carried by the following Roll Call vote:

A APPROVED minutes of the January 13, 2022 Board of Directors meeting. (February,
March, April, May and June 2022 meetings cancelled.)

B. APPROVED Fiscal Year 2021/22 End of Year Budget.
C. APPROVED Fiscal Year 2022/23 Budget.

AYES: Bryant, Meadows, Thorpe, Burgis

NOES: None

ABSTAIN:  None

ABSENT:  White

BOARDMEMBER COMMENTS

Director Bryant expressed appreciation for the work and looked forward to seeing all the
transportation issues be addressed quickly to offer some improved quality of life for East
County residents.

ADJOURNMENT

Vice Chair Burgis adjourned the meeting of the East Contra Costa Regional Fee and
Financing Authority at 7:18 P.M. to Thursday, August 11, 2022, at 6:30 P.M. or other
day/time deemed appropriate by the Board.

Respectfully submitted,

Anita L. Tucci-Smith
Minutes Clerk



EAST CONTRA COSTA
REGIONAL FEE AND FINANCING AUTHORITY
DATE: September 8, 2022
TO: Board of Directors

FROM: Dale Dennis, Program Manager @

SUBJECT: Reimbursement, Waiver and Release Agreement between ECCRFFA and DeNova
Homes, Inc.

Recommendation: APPROVE the Reimbursement, Waiver and Release Agreement (Agreement)
between the East Contra Costa Regional Fee and Finance Authority (ECCRFFA) and DeNova
Homes, Inc., (Developer) for reimbursement of $2,499,912 for a portion of the Sand Creek Road
Extension Project (SCR Extension), and AUTHORIZE the Secretary or designee to execute, on
behalf of the ECCRFFA.

Discussion:

RTDIM fees fund projects on ECCRFFA'’s project list based on the priority given to the projects in
the ECCRFFA joint exercise of powers agreement among the Member Agencies, as amended (the
“JEPA”). From time to time, the Board of Directors updates the ECCRFFA strategic plan (“Strategic
Plan”) to allocate RTDIM fee revenues to ECCRFFA projects consistent with funding priorities in the
JEPA and any funding priorities approved by the Board of Directors.

Effective February 16, 2021, the Member Agencies entered into a fourth amendment to the JEPA to
add the SCR Extension to the ECCRFFA project list. The SCR Extension will extend Sand Creek
Road westerly, from a point near State Route 4 (“SR 4”), to the road’s intersection with Deer Valley
Road, in Antioch. Subsequently, in July 2022, ECCRFFA’s Board of Directors approved an updated
Strategic Plan that prioritizes the SCR Extension for funding.

ACTION OF BOARD ON APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER

VOTE OF DIRECTORS
UNANIMOUS (ABSENT _ )
AYES:_  NOES:

ABSENT: ABSTAIN: I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an
action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board
of Directors on the date shown.

ATTESTED

Secretary to the Authority



East Contra Costa Fee and Financing Authority Board of Directors
Agenda — September 8, 2022
Page 2

The nexus study for the SCR Extension determined that, for the project as a whole, 69% of the cost
of the SCR Extension would be the responsibility of local developers, and the remaining 31% of the
project cost would be attributable to regional vehicle trips. As further described in the nexus study,
the SCR Extension includes seven segments: 1) Western End; 2) Aviano — Phase II; 3) Aviano —
Phase llI; 4) Promenade — Segment 1; 5) Promenade — Segment 2; 6) Promenade — Segment 3;
and 7) Brentwood Bridle Gate. The nexus study determined, for each of those segments, the
proportion of the segment cost that would be the responsibility of local developers, and the
proportion of the segment cost that would be attributable to regional vehicle trips.

The Developer is constructing its “Aviano” residential development, in Antioch (“Development”).
Under the conditions of approval for the Development, the Developer is required to construct two
segments of the SCR Extension, the Aviano — Phase Il and Aviano — Phase |ll segments between
an extension of Dozier-Libbey Road to the west and an extension of Hillcrest Avenue to the east
(together, the two segments are referred to collectively as the “Roadway Segment”). The Developer
has paid and will continue to pay RTDIM fees for all 533 single-family residential units within the
Development, in addition to constructing the two segments of the SCR Extension. When the
Roadway Segment is completed, the City of Antioch (“City”) will consider accepting the roadway into
the City’s road system.

The SCR Extension nexus study determined that ECCRFFA RTDIM fee revenues can be used to
fund 28.2% of the cost of the Roadway Segment. Consistent with the SCR Extension nexus study,
the JEPA, and the Strategic Plan, the portion of the Roadway Segment costs that are eligible for
funding from ECCRFFA RTDIM fees amounts to $2,499,912 (the “Reimbursable Costs”). The
amount includes 28.2% of the Developer’'s cost for soft costs and construction of the Roadway
Segment.

Staff recommends the Board approve the attached Agreement between ECCRFFA and Developer
which provides for the Reimbursable Costs to be paid to developer following completion and
acceptance of the Roadway Segment into the City of Antioch’s road system.



REIMBURSEMENT, WAIVER, AND RELEASE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE
EAST CONTRA COSTA REGIONAL FEE AND FINANCING AUTHORITY AND
DENOVA HOMES, INC., RELATING TO A PORTION OF THE
SAND CREEK EXTENSION PROJECT

This Reimbursement Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into as of August 30, 2022,
(“Effective Date™) by and between the East Contra Costa Regional Fee and Financing Authority,
a joint exercise of powers entity (“‘ECCRFFA™), and Civic Aviano, LLC, a California limited
liability company (“Developer”). ECCRFFA and the Developer are sometimes referred to herein
together as the “Parties,” and each as a “Party.”

RECITALS

A. ECCRFFA is a joint exercise of powers entity among the cities of Antioch, Brentwood,
Oakley, and Pittsburg, and Contra Costa County (“Member Agencies,” and each a
“Member Agency”). ECCRFFA receives revenues from regional transportation
development impact mitigation (“RTDIM”) fees that the Member Agencies impose on
new developments under fee ordinances adopted by those agencies.

B. RTDIM fees fund projects on ECCRFFA’s project list based on the priority given to
the projects in the ECCRFFA joint exercise of powers agreement among the Member
Agencies, as amended (the “JEPA”). From time to time, the Board of Directors updates
the ECCRFFA strategic plan (“Strategic Plan™) to allocate RTDIM fee revenues to
ECCRFFA projects consistent with funding priorities in the JEPA and any funding
priorities approved by the Board of Directors.

C. Effective February 16, 2021, the Member Agencies entered into a fourth amendment
the JEPA to add the Sand Creek Road Extension Project (“SCR Extension”) to the
ECCRFFA project list. The SCR Extension will extend Sand Creek Road westerly,
from a point near State Route 4 (“SR 4”), to the road’s intersection with Deer Valley
Road, in Antioch. The proposed alignment of the SCR Extension is shown on Exhibit
A, attached hereto. Subsequently, in July 2022, ECCRFFA’s Board of Directors
approved an updated Strategic Plan that prioritizes the SCR Extension for funding.

D. The nexus study for the SCR Extension determined that, for the project as a whole,
69% of the cost of the SCR Extension would be the responsibility of local developers,
and the remaining 31% of the project cost would be attributable to regional vehicle
trips. As further described in the nexus study, the SCR Extension includes seven
segments: Western End, Aviano — Phase II, Aviano — Phase III, Promenade — Segment
1, Promenade — Segment 2, Promenade — Segment 3, and Brentwood Bridle Gate (see
Appendix A of the nexus study). The nexus study determined, for each of those
segments, the proportion of the segment cost that would be the responsibility of local

developers, and the proportion of the segment cost that would be attributable to regional
vehicle trips.



The Developer is constructing its “Aviano” residential development, in Antioch
(“Development”). Under the conditions of approval for the Development, the
Developer is required to construct two segments of the SCR Extension — the Aviano —
Phase II and Aviano — Phase III segments — between an extension of Dozier-Libbey
Road to the west and an extension of Hillcrest Avenue to the east (together, the two
segments are referred to collectively as the “Roadway Segment”). The Roadway
Segment is shown on Exhibit B, attached hereto. The Developer has paid and will
continue to pay RTDIM fees for all 533 single-family residential units within the
Development, in addition to constructing the two segments of the SCR Extension.
When the Roadway Segment is completed, the City of Antioch (“City™) will consider
accepting the roadway into the City’s road system.

The SCR Extension nexus study determined that ECCRFFA RTDIM fee revenues
can be used to fund 28.2% of the cost of the Roadway Segment. Consistent with the
SCR Extension nexus study, the JEPA, and the Strategic Plan, the portion of the
Roadway Segment costs that are eligible for funding from ECCRFFA RTDIM fees
amounts to $2,499,912 (the “Reimbursable Costs™). The calculation of the
Reimbursable Costs is more particularly shown in Exhibit C, and the amount includes
28.2% of the Developer’s cost for soft costs and construction of the Roadway
Segment.

The Developer and ECCRFFA desire to enter into this Agreement to allow the
Reimbursable Costs to be paid to developer following completion and acceptance of
the Roadway Segment.

AGREEMENT

Now, therefore, ECCRFFA and the Developer agree as follows:

Recitals. The Parties agree that the above recitals are true and are incorporated in and
made a part of this Agreement.

Term. The term of this Agreement begins on the Effective Date, and it expires upon the
date on which the Reimbursable Costs are fully repaid to the Developer.

ECCRFFA’s Reimbursement Commitment; Adjustments.

()

(b)

ECCRFFA will reimburse the Developer for the Reimbursable Costs within 60 day
after the City accepts the completed Roadway Segment into the City’s road system.

Beginning January 1, 2024, and on each January 1 thereafter, the amount of the
Reimbursable Costs remaining unreimbursed to Developer as of that January 1 will
be adjusted by the lesser of (i) three percent (3%), or (ii) the percentage change in
the Consumer Price Index, San Francisco Area during the 12-month period ending



on the September 30 immediately preceding the January 1 when the adjustment
takes effect.

Developer’s Waiver and Release of Claims. Effective upon the date on which
ECCRFFA fully reimburses Developer for the Reimbursable Costs, the Developer, on
behalf of itself and any parents, subsidiaries, and related entities, however formed, does
hereby release and discharge ECCRFFA and its Member Agencies, and their officers,
employees, agents, contractors, attorneys, successors, and assigns (collectively, “Released
Entities”), from any and all claims, demands, causes of action, obligations, damages, and
liabilities, which the Developer has or could assert against any Released Entities, in any
manner related to or arising from (1) the Developer’s design, construction, management,
right of way acquisition, and dedication of the Roadway Segment, and (2) the Released
Entities’ obligation to reimburse the Developer for costs that the Developer incurred to
design, construct, manage, and acquire right of way for, the Roadway Segment, including
any Reimbursable Costs. The Developer knowingly waives its right to make any claim
against the Released Entities for such damages and expressly waives all rights provided by
section 1542 of the California Civil Code, which provides as follows:

“A GENERAL RELEASE DOES NOT EXTEND TO CLAIMS WHICH THE
CREDITOR DOES NOT KNOW OR SUSPECT TO EXIST IN HIS OR HER FAVOR
AT THE TIME OF EXECUTING THE RELEASE, WHICH IF KNOWN BY HIM OR
HER MUST HAVE MATERIALLY AFFECTED HIS SETTLEMENT WITH THE
DEBTOR.”

The requirements of this Section 4 shall survive the termination or expiration of this
Agreement.

Audit. In order to make audits, ECCRFFA shall have the right of access to any books,
documents, papers, and other records of the Developer that are pertinent to ECCRFFA’s
reimbursement of Reimbursable Costs under this Agreement. During the term of this
Agreement and for a period of three (3) years following its expiration (the “Audit Period”),
the Developer shall keep and maintain accurate financial accounts, in accordance with
generally acceptable accounting principles, of all Reimbursable Costs. During the Audit
Period, the Developer shall provide ECCRFFA copies of accounting records regarding the
Reimbursable Costs and ECCRFFA’s reimbursement of those costs within 10 days after
ECCRFFA’s written request, and the Developer shall make those records available for
inspection during the Developer’s normal business hours, at the Developer’s offices, or the
offices of its financial consultant. During the Audit Period, the Developer shall account
for all Reimbursable Costs and shall provide ECCRFFA a written summary and current
total of those costs within 30 days after a request by ECCRFFA. The requirements of this
Section 5 shall survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement.

Notices. All notices, payments, and other correspondence required to be given under this

Agreement shall be in writing, and shall be delivered in person, by overnight delivery, or
by U.S. Mail, to the following:



10.

To ECCRFFA:

Dale Dennis, Program Manager

c¢/o Contra Costa County Public Works Department
255 Glacier Drive

Martinez, CA 94553

Email: dodennis@TheCyberJungle.com

To Developer:
Civic Aviano, LLC (d.b.a. DeNova Homes, Inc.)

Attn: David B. Sanson, Dana C. Tsubota, Trent Sanson

1500 Willow Pass Court

Concord, CA 94520

Email: dave@denovahomes.com; dana@denovahomes.com; trent@denovahomes.com

or to such other address as each Party may respectively designate by written notice to the
other Party. A notice or other correspondence shall be deemed given on the same day if it
is personally delivered, on the next day if it is delivered by overnight delivery, or on the
fifth (5th) day after the postmark date if it is given by U.S. Mail. A courtesy copy ofa
notice or other correspondence may be sent by email, as long as the notice or other
correspondence also is given in a manner expressly authorized by this section.

Assignment. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and shall be binding upon the
successors and assigns of the Parties hereto. This Agreement may not be assigned by either
Party unless the assignment is approved in writing by the other Party.

Modification. This Agreement may not be modified or amended except in a writing signed
by both Parties hereto. '

Construction. The section headings and captions of this Agreement are, and the
arrangement of this Agreement is, for the sole convenience of the Parties to this Agreement.
The section headings, captions, and arrangement of this Agreement do not in any way
affect, limit, amplify, or modify the terms and provisions of this Agreement. This
Agreement shall not be construed as if it had been prepared by one of the Parties, but rather
as if all Parties have prepared it. The Parties to this Agreement and their attorneys have
read and reviewed this Agreement and agree that any rule of construction to the effect that
ambiguities are to be resolved against the drafting party shall not apply to the interpretation
of this Agreement. The recitals of this Agreement are, and shall be enforceable as, a part
of this Agreement.

No Third-Party Beneficiaries. Except for Developer’s release of Member Entities
contained in Section 3, nothing in this Agreement, express or implied, is intended to confer
on any person, other than the Parties and their successors and assigns, any rights or
remedies by reason of this Agreement.



11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

Waiver. A waiver of breach of any covenant or provision in this Agreement shall not be
deemed a waiver of any other covenant or provision in this Agreement, and no waiver shall
be valid unless in writing and executed by the waiving party.

Specific Performance. The sole remedy for violation of this Agreement shall be the
specific performance of this Agreement.

Governing Law. This Agreement shall be governed and construed in accordance with the
laws of the State of California.

Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of
which shall be deemed an original.

Attorney’s Fees. In any action or proceeding to enforce or interpret any provision of this
Agreement, or where any provision hereof is validly asserted as a defense, each Party shall

bear its own attorney’s fees, costs, and expenses.

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank — signatures on next page.]



EAST CONTRA COSTA REGIONAL CIVIC AVIANO, LLC
FEE AND FINANCING AUTHORITY

By: By: A ~

Program Manager Its: W }Z{//(/// Avthonzed 7?7/7M/
Date of Board Approval: By

Her—— p—

Approved as to form: Approved as to form:
Mary Ann McNett Mason
County Counsel
By: By:

Stephen M. Siptroth
Deputy County Counsel

SMS
H:\Client Matters\ECCRFFA & TRANSPLAN\DB - James Donlon\FINAL - JDE Extension Reimbursement Agreement with DBI 030519.docx

Attachments:

Exhibit A Map of the SCR Extension

Exhibit B Map of the Roadway Segment

Exhibit C Calculation of Developer’s Reimbursable Costs



EAST CONTRA COSTA REGIONAL DENOVA HOMES, INC.
FEE AND FINANCING AUTHORITY

» ~///
By: By: _z }
Program Manager Its: #fos/ s -

g
B

Date of Board Approval: By: —

Its; —m@M8m™

Approved as to form: Approved as to form:
Mary Ann McNett Mason
County Counsel

By: \?\%\ By:

Stephen M. Siptroth
Deputy County Counsel

SMS
H:\Client Matters\ECCRFFA & TRANSPLAN\DB - James Donlon\FINAL - JDE Extension Reimbursement Agreement with DBI 030519.docx

Attachments:

Exhibit A Map of the SCR Extension

Exhibit B Map of the Roadway Segment

Exhibit C Calculation of Developer’s Reimbursable Costs



EXHIBIT A

MAP OF THE SCR EXTENSION



< ROYAL FORMOSA/| _ F

‘/lf

G Q%om_o «émq :

PR

WIS X
7% LR 2
HIRRE AR Y
8 28 ,.u,n «»1.5
==/ Pl a =

LEGEND

SAND CREEK ROAD REGIONAL ROADWAY COST SUMMARY
SEGMENT AFPROXIMATE
NUMBER, DESCRIFTION LENGTH (LF) CUST(5) CISTE)ILF
1 AR / ROTAL TDWOSA 25590 7553000 250U
2 A 8% £330 13IE0NFE
3 PIUDITREYARDS 2718 553509 32020/F%
4 BIULE CATE 210 5524000 280/
SRICIAL 12,320 27510009 | S268,Ut (AVS) |
5 BROGE ($34 X 145) 8b 4.35760) NA
3 TRATIC SRULS (£200¢ 7 145 FOR SCHAL) X/A 3045000 N/A
1014 12320 35,085,000 18L0AF (R16)

KL AL COSTS INCLUOE A 20% CINTASONCY MP) 257 103

S— 0 w— CITY LPAT UNE/ $P)ZRE OF INFLUENCE

SEEEEIEEEE HEGIOHAL ROADIWAY

“ TRAFFIC SIGVAL

SECTION 81 _SAND CREEK ROAD - BRENTWOQD _ 147 R/ \ /

PRELIMINARY
REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION

ROUTING EXHIBIT
SAND CREEK ROAD

TIY OF ANTHKD/ FINTADDS  COVIRA CUSTA COUNTY.

o W [

NEY




EXHIBIT B

MAP OF THE ROADWAY SEGMENT




EXHIBIT C
DEVELOPER’S REIMBURSABLE COSTS
Total Reimbursable Costs:  $2,499,912
The Reimbursable Costs were calculated as follows:
Soft Costs and Construction. The attached table includes Developer’s costs for soft costs and
construction for the regional component of the Roadway Segment ($8,864,935). The

Reimbursement Limit under this Agreement includes ECCRFFA’s share of those costs (28.2%),
calculated as follows:

($8,864,935) x (0.282) = §2,499,912.



EAST CONTRA COSTA
REGIONAL FEE AND FINANCING AUTHORITY

DATE: September 8, 2022
TO: Board of Directors

FROM: Dale Dennis, Program Manager @

SUBJECT: Approve Consulting Services Agreement Amendment with Lucy Owens for Staff
Support and Right of Way Services

Recommendation: APPROVE an amendment to the Consulting Services Agreement with
L. Lucy Owens to increase the payment limit by $75,000.00 to a revised payment limit of
$174,900 for staff support and right of way services for ECCRFFA and extend the term to
December 31, 2023; and AUTHORIZE the Secretary or designee to sign the amendment on
behalf of the Authority.

Discussion:

Staff recommends the Board approve an amendment to the contract with Ms. Owens to
continue to provide staff support and right-of-way services for ECCRFFA.

In addition to providing staff support to the ECCRFFA Program Manager, Ms. Owens will be
providing right of way services to accomplish the following: 1) right of way transfer activities
for the Balfour Road Interchange project; 2) right of way acquisition and transfer activities for
the Mokelumne Trail Overcrossing project; 3) preparation and coordination of processing of
documents such as consent to common use agreements, joint use agreements and grant
deeds; 4) coordination with utility companies on CCUAs and JUAs; 5) coordination with R/W
engineering staff and Caltrans staff; 6) acquisition of necessary access rights for CCWD
from Shea Homes; 7) close out of project acquisition files and transferring them to Caltrans
and Brentwood; and 8) sale of Sand Creek Road excess property.

The right of way services outlined above are expected to be completed by December 2023.
The attached letter dated September 1, 2022, provides the proposed scope and budget for
the above-described effort.

ACTION OF BOARD ON APPROVED AS RECOMMENDED OTHER
VOTE OF DIRECTORS
UNANIMOUS (ABSENT )
AYES: NOES:
ABSENT: ABSTAIN: I hereby certify that this is a true and correct copy of an

action taken and entered on the minutes of the Board of
Directors on the date shown.

ATTESTED

Secretary to the Authority



September 1, 2022

Mr. Dale Dennis

East Contra Costa Regional Fee and Financing Authority
255 Glacier Drive

Martinez, CA 94553

RE: Staff Support and Right of Way Services for the East Contra Costa Regional Fee
and Financing Authority (ECCRFFA)

Dear Mr. Dennis:

As requested, attached is the scopeffee for a contract amendment to provide staff
support to the ECCRFFA Program Manager and right of way services.

Right of way services will be provided to accomplish the following: 1) right of way
transfer activities for the Balfour Road Interchange project; 2) right of way acquisition
and transfer activities for the Mokelumne Trail Overcrossing project; 3) preparation and
coordination of processing of documents such as consent to common use agreements,
joint use agreements and grant deeds; 4) coordination with utility companies on CCUAs
and JUAs; 3) coordination with R/W engineering staff and Caltrans staff; 6) acquisition
of necessary access rights for CCWD from Shea Homes; 7) close out of project
acquisition files and transferring them to Caltrans and Brentwood; and 8) sale of Sand
Creek Road excess property.

Very truly yours,
L. Luney Owera



ECCRFFA ESTIMATED HOURS AND BUDGET THRU December 31, 2023

TASKS HOURS COST
SEGMENTS 2 & 3, including Marsh Creek Road -
Acquire access rights from SHEA Homes for CCWD. 10 1,830.00
Subtotal Transfer and Closeout Related Items 10 1,830.00
Excess Properties
Sell Excess Property on Sand Creek Road 10 1,830.00
Subtotal Excess Properties 10 1,830.00
Balfour Road Interchange Project
R/W Transfer to Caltrans 120 21,960.00
Subtotal Balfour Road Interchange Project 120 21,960.00
Mokelumne Trail Overcrossing Project
R/W Acquisition Services 20 3,660.00
R/W Transfer to Brentwood & Caltrans 120 21,930.00
Subtotal Mokeulumne Trail Project 140 25,590.00
Staff Support to ECCRFFA Program Manager
Staff Support to ECCRFFA Program Manager 130 23,790.00
Subtotal Excess Properties 130 23,790.00
Amendment Amount 410 75,000.00

NOTE: Charge rates will be $183 for 2022, $192 for 2023




